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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of Zuari Farmhub Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Zuari Farmhub Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) for the year then ended, the Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS)” and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2021, the loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the Ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter ~ Effects of COVID-19
We draw attention to Note 35 Notes to Accounts annexed, which describes the economjc

and social disruptions the entity is facing as a result of COVID-19.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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Management Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act 2013, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance, of the Division

in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Division or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involye
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collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Division
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Division’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Division to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Independent Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect of the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting of the company and its operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”.
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g) The Company has not made any payments towards Directors remuneration and
therefore the provisions of section 197 of the Act does not apply to the Company,
hence reporting under Section 143(3)(g) is not required.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

I The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required lo be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

For K.P. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
irm Reg. No. 0031355

s M\wf

Prashanth S
Place :Bangalore Partner
Date :6th May 2021 Membership No. 228407

UDIN : 21228407A AAABF7958
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(@)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(a) The company is maintaining records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant and
Equipment of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were found on such verification.

(c) The immoveable property has been transferred from Zuari Agro Chemicals Limted (ZACL)
on account of business transfer agreement, however the same has not yet been registered in
the name of the Company and hence the title deeds of the immovable properties are not held
in the name of the Company.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management. In our opinion the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedure of verification of inventories followed by the company is reasonable
and adequate in relation to size of the company and nature of its business.

() The company is maintaining proper records of inventory.

The company has not granted loan to persons covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting requirements under clause
3(iii) is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186
of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits from the public, and in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under are not
applicable.

a. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the
cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central

Continuation Sheet
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(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been
made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per our
verification of the records of the company, all the statutory dues has been remitted by
the Holding company Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd. and the holding company has been
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’
state insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues of
the Company with the appropriate authorities during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income 1'ax, Goods
and Service Tax, Cess and olher statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per our
verification of the records of the company, there are no disputed amounts of tax/duty
that have not been deposited with appropriate authorities as at 31st March 2021.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
financial institution, bank, government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments).

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the
company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

The Company has not made any payments towards Directors remuneration and
therefore the provisions of section 197 of the Act does not apply to the Company, hence
reporting under Para 3(xi) is not required.

BANGALORE
FRN: 0031355 £
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(xij In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented

upon.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiii) ~ According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the company

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For K.P. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Reg. No. 0031355

% o LU/ _

FRN: 0031355
Prashanth S
Place :Bangalore Partner
Date :6th May 2021 Membership No. 228407

UDIN : 21228407AAAABF7958
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph (f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as
at 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021,
the statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement annexed for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAT')”. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act').

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing (‘the Standards’), issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively

in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial teporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
offectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend

BANGALORE

FRN: 0031355




K. P. RAO & CO. Continuation Sheet

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. This includes those policies and procedures that :

() pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i) ~ provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and

(iify  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements because of the inherent
limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

BANGALORE
FRN: 0031355




K. P. RAO & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

Continuation Sheet.....

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
However, the Company is following the policies, systems, procedures and internal controls
followed by their Holding Company - Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd. and the Company is in the
process of forming and documenting their policies, systems, procedures and internal

controls.

Place :Bangalore
Date :6th May 2021

For K.P. Rao & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firmy Reg. No. 0031355

o4 ha- Uﬂf

Prashanth S SZACY
Partner
Membership No. 228407

BANGALORE
FRN: 0031355

UDIN : 21228407A AAABF7958
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated) Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Notes Period ended Period ended
31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6,612.42 7,192.21
(b) Inlangible Assets 4 1,566.57 1,534 99
(c) Financial Assets 5
(i) Loans 5A 290.15 288.75
(ii) Others 5B 3370 33,70
{d) Other Non Current Assests 6 3,503.70 3,687.64
Sub Total (A) 12,006.54 12,737.28
2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 4,209 61 437180
(b) Financial Assets -
(i) Trade Receivables 8 2,467.07 3,51421
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,853.86 1.00
(iii) Loans S5A 4.48 3.53
(iv) Others 5B 5741 5741
(c) Other current assets 6 564.15 667,18
Sub Total (B) 9,156.58 8,615.13
Total Assets (A+B) 21,163.12 21,352.41
il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
n Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 10 1.00 1.00
(b) Other Equity 11 (47,138.70) (44,956.14)
Sub Total (C) (47,137.70) (44,955.14)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 23,747.20 23,874.44
(ii} Other Financial Liabilities 14 35,000 00 35,000.00
(iii) Other Liabilities 15 5117 68.23
{b) Provisions 16 445.71 17939
Sub Total (D) 59,244.08 59,122.05
) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 13
a) lotal Outstanding dues to micro enterprises 34182 54.66
and small enterprises
b) total Qutstanding dues to Creditors other 1.289,95 6,145,90
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 83920 51372
(b) Other current liabilities 15 434,40 265.94
(¢) Provisions 16 151.38 205.27
Sub Total (E) 9,056.74 7,185.49
21,163.12 21,352.41 |

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For K P Rao & Co.
hartered Accountants

i

rashanth.5

Partner
Membershlp Number : 22 <n 2
! AT
Place of slgnature: Bangalore
Date: 06 May 2021
ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED

CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

o\ ©- d__’_k&-b-\'\_&

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuarl Farmhub Limited
Q L] N\O\)«\A‘"

Madan Pandey Sabaleel Nandy
Director Director
DIN: 08676640 DIN: 08677564

Place of signature: Bangalore
Date: 06 May 2021

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.

Tel.: + 91 80 46992299 » www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India ¢ Tel.: + 91 832 2552180



FavymHUB

advéntz

GIGR A, e Joafd.
Zunrl Farmihub Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stited) Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Notes Period ended Period ended
31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020
I REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 18 29,289.41 161.06
Other Income 19 154.78 =
Total Revenue (I) 29,444.20 161.06
1 EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed - -
Purchases of Stock in trade 20 25,128.16
Chang.es in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 21 162.87 131.16
work in progress
Employee Benefits Expense 22 2,088.63 29.30
Finance Costs 23 528.30 -
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 1,075.58 0.71
Other Expenses 25 264324 56.35
Total expenses (IT) 31,626.76 217.52
11 Profit before exceptional items and twy (1-11) (2,182.56) (56.40)
IV Prior Period Items (Discounts on prior year sale) -
V  Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV) (2,182.56) (56.46)
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current Tax (under MAT) 17 -
(2) Taxes in respect of earlier years 17 -
(3) Deferred Tax Expense/ (Credit) -
VII—[Proﬁ! (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (2,182.50) (56.46)
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Attributed to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non Controlling Interest
VI (Loss) per equity share: (nominal value of share INR 10/-
{31 March 2021- INR 10/-)
(1) Basic (21,825.64) (564.57)
(2) Diluted (21,825.64) (564.57)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financlal statements

As per our report of even date

or K P Rao & Co. Yy
A0 &

TA FRN: 0031300 ) 5
Prashanth.S }\/ i R
Partner NIED acc S

Membership Number : 228407

Pliace of slgnature: Bangalore
Date: 06 May 2021 -

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

B A
BANGALORE |

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

2Zuarl Farmhub Uimited

Madan Pandey
Director
DIN: 08676640

Place of signature: Bangalore

Date: 06 May 2021

Nowd

Sabaleel Nandy
Dlrector
DIN: 08677564

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
Tel.: + 91 80 46992299 « www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India * Tel.: + 91832 2592180
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year year 31st Mar 2021

t in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the Period ended 31 | For the year ended 31

Mar 2021 Maurch 2020
A |Cash flow from operaling activities:
(Loss) befors lax (2,182 56) (56.46)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment 1,075.58 071
Increase in provisions 26633 0
Incentive under packing scheme incentive -17.06
Interest expensc 528.30 -
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital adjustmen(s {329.42}) !5515[’
Working capital adjustments :
Decreasc in provisions (53.88) 384.65
Increase/ (deerense) in trade payables and other liabilitics 1,925.14 42,049.17
Dcereasc in trade receivables 1,047.14 (3.514.21)
(Increasc)/ decrease in inventorics 16220 (4,371.80)
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets and financial asscts 103.03 (4,445.92)
(Incronse)/ decreasc in lonns and ndvances (2.35) (292.28)
Net cnsh (low from Operating Activities (A)* 2.R51.85 29.753.86
B |Cash Mow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including intangible assets, capital work in progress and capilal odvances (527.39) (8,728.62)
Decrease in Capital Advance 18394 -
Purchase of non-current investments - {69,896.74)
Proceeds [rom Equily Share Capital - 1.00
Inlerest expense N
Net cash Now from/ (used in) investing activities (B) T8,624.36)
C |Cash flow from financing activities:
Pruecels from long term borrowings (Debentures) - 43,556.00
Procecds fioin lang term borrewings (Lease) (127.24) 531550
Net cash flow (used In) financing netivities (C) -127,24 __48.871.50
D |Netincrense/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,852 86 1.00
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 100 -
Cagh and eash oguivalents at the year end (Refer Note 9) 1 85540 I,Cli
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balances with banks
+ Chyy current apcounits 1.853 B6 1.00
Canh s cash equivalents 1.853 86 1.00

5

ZUARI FA

Ax per our report of even date

Place of signature: Dangalore
Dute: 06 May 2021

vof policics

‘I'h accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

N Corporate Information
The Company is a closely held public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa
403726. The Company is in the business of manufacturing, trading and marketing of chemical fertilizers, water soluble
fertilizers, seeds, pesticides and allied services.

The Board of directors of the Company at its meetings held on 5 February 2020 approved the Purchase of retail, speciality
nutrients business (SPN), & allied, crop protection and care business (CPC), seeds and blended businesses allied business
from Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited (ZACL), the Holding Company on a going concern basis under a slump sale/Purchase
arrangement. Accordingly, a ‘Business Transfer Agreement (‘BTA) was executed on March 31, 2020 between the
Company and ZACL.

These standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
of the Company in their meeting held on 06th May 2021

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

i) Basis of Preparation
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule I} to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lil), as
applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities, which have been measured at fair value-
- Derivative financial instruments,

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),
and

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

The standalone financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

ii) Basis of classification of Current and Non-Current
Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non-current based upon the
requirements of Schedule 1l notified under the Companies Act, 2013.

An asset has been classified as current if

a) itis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle; or

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

c) itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless itis restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

All other assets have been classified as non-current.

A liability has been classified as current when
a) itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; or
) itis held primarily for the purpose of being fraded; or
) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

Q O T

All other liabilities have been classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iii)  Foreign Currency Translation

a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency'). The standalone financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company's functional and presentation currency.

b) Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

c) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial fransaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that existed when the fair value was
determined.

d) Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. -

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognised in OC
or profit and loss, respectively).
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

iv) Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

v) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

- Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as
assets held for sale in discontinued operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, and significant liabilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies
the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each
asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. For the purpose of fair
value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

vi)  Non-current assets classified as held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely
that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the
exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to
be highly probable when:

- The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,

- An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

- The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair vaiue,

- The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification, and

- Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or
that the plan will be withdrawn,
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell.
Cost to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expenses. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

vii)  Property, plant and equipment
PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price, including import duties and non- refundable purchase taxes, borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from
the existing PPE beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of PPE are capitalized at cost. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventories.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under capital

advances. The cost of the fixed asset not ready for its intended use on such date is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of the assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

viii)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than specific asset referred under Para (a) to (e) below is calculated
using the straight-ine basis using the rates arrived at, based on the useful lives estimated by the management. For this
purpose, a major portion of the plant has been considered as continuous process plant. The identified components are
depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of principal asset.
The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment which are equal to
the rates specified in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013.

Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Factory buildings 30 years
Other buildings (RCC structures) 60 years
Other buildings (other than RCC structures) _~ahd0geacs f
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Plant and equipment (Continuous process plant) 25 years
Plant and equipment (Others) 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Roads and Culverts 3, 5and 10 years
Office equipment 3to 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of the following classes
of assets:

(a) The useful lives of components of certain plant and equipment are estimated as  to 20 years. These lives are lower
than those indicated in Schedule II.

(b) Insurance/ capital/ critical stores and sparcs are depreciated over the remaining useful life of related plant and
equipment or useful life of insurance/capitall critical spares, whichever is lower.

(c) Property, plant and equipment whose value is less than INR 5,000/- are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year and adjusted prospectively, if any .

ix) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Software

Management of the Company assessed the useful life of software as finite and cost of software is amortized over their
estimated useful life of three years on straight-line basis.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an

intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

- Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

All expenses incurred on research and development activities are expensed as incurred by the Company since these do
not meet the recognition criteria as listed above.

Goodwill (pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation)

Goodwill, which arose pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of Zuari Speciality Fertilisers Limited (ZSFL) with the Zuari
Agro Chemicals Limited (Holding Company), has got merged with the Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited (Holding Company).
Further, as per Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) executed on March 31, 2020 between the Company and Zuari Agro
Chemicals Limited (ZACL), Speciality business has been purchase under slump sale arrangement from ZACL and Goodwill
is part of such transfer

x) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount.
An asset's recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available, and if no such transactions can be
identified an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGU’s to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of - profit
and loss.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying

O
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the
goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU s less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

xi)  Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That s, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-iine basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

+ Land 3 to 30 years

* Building 2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment

Lease liabilities

a) Atthe commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

b) Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are

incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the paymm%;?c»uﬁr\ej N
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Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value.Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

xii}  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Instruments-
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business mode! for managing the asset and the

cash flow characteristics of the asset. For the purposes of subsequent measurement, debt instruments are classified in
three categories:
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- Debt instruments at amortised cost;
- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
- Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(a) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent sole payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation
as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt
instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only
if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt

instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments-
Investments in subsidiaries are subsequently measured at cost.

For the purposes of subsequent measurement of other equity instruments classification is made into below two categories:
- Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

BANGALORE
FRN: 0031355

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLC0O14150

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
Tel.: + 91 80 46992299  www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India ¢ Tel.: + 91832 2592180



A O

FavmHUB adventz

GASR Axeft, ew Ioafdy.

Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Equity investments other than investments in subsidiaries are measured at fair value. The Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument -by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and
loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company categorizes them into Stage
1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1. When financial assets are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 months ECLs.
Stage 1 financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the financial assets has
been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2. When afinancial assets has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and

the financial assets has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3:  Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.
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b} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade
and other payables, loans and borrowings including derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial
instruments and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate. The fair value of financial
guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

c) Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

xiii)  Compound financial instrument

Compulsory Convertible Instruments

Compulsory Convertible Debentures are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract.
At the inception of the Compulsory Convertible Instruments, the following two elements will be separated:

(a) a liability component arising from the interest payments; and
(b) an equity component representing the delivery of fixed number of equity shares in future.

On issuance of the Compulsory Convertible Instrument, the fair value of the liability portion is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non convertible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the
compound instrument since it meets Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the equity component
is not

subsequently re-measured.

xiv)  Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits

xv)  Dividend to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

xvi)  Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value.

The Cost is determined as follows:
a) Raw materials and Store and Spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on Moving weighted average method.

b)  Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on Moving weighted average method.

¢)  Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on Moving weighted average method.
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Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost includes the necessary cost incurred in bringing inventory to its present location and condition necessary for use.

Net Realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

xvii)  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Borrowing costs include interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowing. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

xviii)  Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with
customers are provided in paragraph 2.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the point in time when controi of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the product. The normal credit term is 15 to 120 days upon delivery.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some
contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with a right of return gnd volume rebates. The rights of return and volume
rebates give rise to variable consideration. AU
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(a) Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The Company uses
the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead of
revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to change
in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

{b) Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of goods purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount
method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

ii)  Significant financing component
Occasionally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115,
the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if
it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and
when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in paragraph
xii) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability isgrecognised when the payment is made or the
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payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The
asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including
any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded
for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and
is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates
its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.
Refer to above accounting policy on variable consideration.

As per Ind AS 115 and the Educational Material of Ind AS 115, sales tax/ VAT is not received by the entity on its own
account, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the Government, therefore, it is
excluded from revenue. From 1 July 2017, the GST regime has been introduced, revenue is being recognised net of GST.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims and receivable on account of interest from dealers on delayed payment are accounted for to the extent
the Company is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised
cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend is recognized when the shareholders' right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date.
Xix) Retirement and other employee benefits

i) Provident Fund
Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation of projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The difference between the actuarial
valuation of the provident fund of employees at the year end and the balance of own managed fund is provided for as

liability in the books in terms of the provisions under Employee Provident F ind and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
QAO &

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Réai_a, Bengaluru - 560 001, Karnataka, India.
Tel.: + 91 80 46992299 » www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India ¢ Tel.: + 91 832 2592180



FavmHUB adventz

GoIeR Acdt, oo 3ok,

Zuari Farmhub Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Any excess of plan assets over projected benefit obligation is ignored as such surplus is distributed to the beneficiaries of
the trust.

i) Superannuation and Contributory Pension Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Superannuation Fund and Contributory Pension Fund are defined contribution scheme.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the Superannuation Fund and Contributory Pension
Fund to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) against the insurance policy taken with them. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the Superannuation Fund and Contributory Pension Fund scheme as expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

iii) Gratuity
Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

The Company has taken insurance policy under the Group Gratuity Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) to cover the gratuity liability of the employees.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and such re-measurement gain /
(loss) are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in the subsequent periods. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

iv) Post-Retirement Medical Benefit
Post-retirement medical benefit is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for based on actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in statement of profit & loss.

v) Leave Encashment
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit,
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date. . Re measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in statement of profit and loss

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long term employee
benefit for measurement purpose. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation

using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The Company presefits the leave as a currentliability in the balance
wAU §
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sheet: to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settiement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

vi) Pension Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of family pension fund and National Pension Scheme are defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the pension fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the pension fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss.

vii) Voluntary Retirement Scheme
Compensation to employees under the voluntary retirement scheme of the Company is computed on the basis of number
of employees exercising the retirement option under the scheme.

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering of service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

xx) Taxes

Current Income Tax and Deferred Tax

Tax expense comprises current income tax and deferred tax. Current income-tax expense is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabiliies
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences, except:
- When the deferred tax liability arises from an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent thatit is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) / Sales/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
When GST amount incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, the GST paid
is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. Otherwise,
expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of GST paid. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

xxi)  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of the equity shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

xxii) Government grants and subsidies
Grants from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expenses item, it is recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them on a
systematic basis to the costs, which it is intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

xxiii) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Xxiv) Segment Reporting Policies
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Management.
Management review the performance of the Company according to the nature of products manufactured, traded and
services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the locatjons of customers.

Segment accounting policies é
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The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting standalone financial statements of the Company as a whole.

2.A. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options- Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased
asset).

b) Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, post-employment medical benefits and other defined benefit plans and
the present value of the obligation of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for defined
benefit plans, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on the expected future inflation
rates.

c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets wheye ever possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair \1{.!&30 Judggments include considerations of inputs
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such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

d) Useful life of Property, plant and equipment
The management estimates the useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment based on technical
evaluation. These assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

e} Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted
cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the
DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to goodwill recognised by the Company.

f) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return and volume rebates that give rise to variable
consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in estimating the variable
consideration for the sale of goods with rights of return, given the large number of customer contracts that have similar
characteristics. In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with volume rebates, the Company
determined that using a combination of the most likely amount method and expected value method is appropriate. The
selected method that better predicts the amount of variable consideration was primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount method is used for those contracts with a single volume
threshold, while the expected value method is used for contracts with more than one volume threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame. [}

Estimating variable consideration for returns and volume rebates
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The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of goods with rights
of return and volume rebates.

The Company developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns. The model used the historical return data of
each product to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the expected
value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to historical return pattern will
impact the expected return percentages estimated by the Company.

The Company's expected volume rebates are analysed on a per customer basis for contracts that are subject to a
single volume threshold. Determining whether a customer will be likely entitled to rebate will depend on the customer's
historical rebates entitiement and accumulated purchases to date.

The Company applied a statistical mode! for estimating expected volume rebates for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The model uses the historical purchasing patterns and rebates entitlement of customers to
determine the expected rebate percentages and the expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant
changes in experience as compared to historical purchasing patterns and rebate entitlements of customers will impact
the expected rebate percentages estimated by the Company.

The Company updates its assessment of expected returns and volume rebates quarterly and the refund liabilities are
adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected returns and volume rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Company's past experience regarding returns and rebate entitiements may not be representative of customers'
actual returns and rebate entitiements in the future.

g) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

h) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

2.B. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards
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The Company has adopted new standards for the first time in April 2019. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in April 2019, but do not have an impact on the
standalone financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto.
Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under
Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value’ assets (e.g., personal
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a
lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events {(e.g., a change in the
lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases:
operating and finance leases.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application
of 1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised at the date of initial application. Accordingly, comparatives for the period ended 31 March , 2019 have
not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company elected to apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying Ind AS 17. The Company also elected to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts
for which the lease terms ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the
underlying asset is of low value.

a.  Nature of the effect of adoption of IND AS 116
The Company has lease contracts for various guest house, retail outlets and land. Before the adoption of ind AS
116, the Company classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the Company; otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. Finance
leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned between interest
(recognised as finance costs) and reduction of the lease liability. In an operating lease, the leased property was not
capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-
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line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised under Prepayments and Trade
and other payables, respectively.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases
that it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The standard provides specific
transition requirements and practical expedients, which has been applied by the Company.

Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Company did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial
application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i.e., the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities equal
the lease assets and liabilities recognised under Ind AS 17). The requirements of Ind AS 116 was applied to these
leases from 1 April 2019.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases
The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as operating
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most leases were
recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised
based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments
previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it;
e  Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
o Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application
o  Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date
of initial application
e Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application
o Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The appendix specifically
addresses the following:

e Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

e How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

o How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances
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An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other
uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. In
determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might consider, for example, (a)
how it prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or {b) how the entity expects the taxation authority to
make its examination and resolve issues that might arise from that examination.

The Company applied the appendix from its effective date. Since the Company operates in comparatively simple tax
environment and does not operate in a complex multinational environment, applying the appendix did not have significant
impact in its Interim Condensed Standalone ind AS Financial Statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 12: Income Taxes

The amendments also clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions
or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity
originally recognised those past transactions or events. Since the Company's current practice is in line with these
amendments, they had no impact on the Interim Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification.
The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.

These amendments have no impact on the Interim Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company,

Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during
a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the
annual reporting period, an entity is required to:

o Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

»  Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using: the
net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event;
and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability/ (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without
considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change
in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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These amendments had no impact on the Interim Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as
it did not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the period.

Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Since the Company's current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no
impact on the Interim Condensed Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company.

2.1 Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no standards or amendments issued on or before March 31, 2021 but not yet effective, which may have
any material impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

advéntz

(INR In lakhs)
Freehold land L hold Bulldings Plant and Furnlture and Office Vehlcles Right to use Total
land Note.l equlpment fixtures equlpment bullding
Cost
As at 31 March 2019
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Transferred from Zuari Agro Chemicals 17.70 63.21 685.94 354.38 546.34 144.11 0.28 5,380.26 7,192.21
Limted {(ZACL) on account of business
transfer agreement
As at 31 March 2020 17.70 63.21 685.94 354.38 546.34 144.11 0.28 5,380.26 7,192.21
Additions 4.94 43.68 3.98 424.44 477.04
Charge for the year 0.76 33.30 67.85 74.25 74.38 816.62 1,067.16
Disposals - - - - - - -
As at 31 Mar 2021 0.76 33.30 67.85 74.25 74.38 - 816.62 1,067.16
Charge for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - - - B -
As at 31 Mar 2021 0.76 33.30 67.85 74.25 74.38 . 816.62 1,067.16
Net book value
As at 31 Mar 2021 17.70 62.45 652.64 286.53 515.76 69.73 0.28 4,988.08 6,602.09
cwip 10.33
6,612.42

1. Building includes self constructed building with net book value of INR 597.20 lakhs on leasehold land.

4. Intanglble assets

(INR In lakhs)
Software Goodwlil ** Total

Cost
As at 31 March 2019 -
Additions -
Disposals - -
Transferred from Zuari Agro Chemicais 1.46 1,533.53 1,534.99
Limted (ZACL) on account of business
transfer agre_gment
As at 31 March 2020 1.46 1,533.53 1,534.99
Addltlons 40.00 40.00
Charge for the year 8.42 8.42
Disposals
As at 31 Mar 2021 -
Net book value
As at 31 Mar 2021 33.04 1,533.53 1,566.57
As at 31 March 2020 1.46 1,533.53 1,534.99

**Persuant to business transfer agreement (BTA) executed on March 31, 2020 between the company and Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited (ZACL), retail, specility nutrients business (SPN)
& allied, crop protection & care business (CPC), seeds and blended businesses has been transferred, goodwill is part of such transfer. The goodwill, arose pursuant to the scheme of
amalgamation of Zuari Speciality Fertilisers Limited (ZSFL) with Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited (Holding Company).
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Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

adventz

5, Financial assets
SA. Loans

Rs in Lakhs

Non Current | Current

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21  31-Mar-20

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good

- with others 28737 284.52 3.39 2.44
Other loans and advances
secured, considered good
Fixed Deposit 0.50 - - -
Loans to employees 0.22 1.11 0.32 0.32
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 0.10 0.10 027 0.27
Interest accrued on loans to emplovees 1.96 3.02 0.50 0.50
Total 290.15 288.75 4.48 3.53
5B. Others

Non Current | Current

J1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 _31-Mar-21 _ 31-Muar-20

Other financial assets (unsecured, considered good)

| Packing scheme incentive grant receivables 33.70 33.70 57.41 57.41
Compensated Absences - - - -
TOTAL 33.70 33.70 57.41 57.41
Brealk up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non Current Current

31-Mar-21 _31-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-21 __31-Mar-20
Loans (Refer Note 5A) 290.15 288.75 448 3.53
Trade receivable (Refer Note 8) - - 2,467.07 3,514.21
Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) - - 1,853.86 1,00
Other fi ial assets (Refer Note 5B) 33.70 33.70 57.41 57.41
Total Financial assefs carried at amortised cost 323.85 322.45 4,382.82 3,576.15

6. Other assets

s in Lakhs
e ——

- to others

Total

Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Unsecured, considered good, except where otherwise stated
Capital advances
- to related parties (Refer Note 28) 3,496.57 3,686.22 - -
1.42 1.42 - -
Advances (other than capital advances):
- to related parties (Refer Note 28) 571
Other, considered good - 57.04 165.42
Other, considered doubtful - - 18.76 18.76
571 - 75.80 184.18
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - (18.76) (18.76)
5.71 - 57.04 165.42
Advance to employees - - 10.54 8.30
Balances with statutory authorities - - 493.21 493.21
Prepaid expensues - - 336 0.26
3.503.70 3.687.64 564.15 667,18

7. _Inventories {valued at lower of cost and net realisnble value)

Raw materials
Traded poods
Stores and spares

Hs in Lakhs
31-Mar-21  31.-Mar-20
— —
364.86 132.19
3.838.54 4,234.08
6.21 5.53

4,209.61 4.371.80
-2

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150
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Zuari Farmhub Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

8. Trade receivables (at amortized cost)

Rs in Lakhs
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Trade receivables - related parties (Refer Note 28) - 1.80
Trade receivables - others 2,467.07 3,512.41
Total Trade Receivables 2,467.07 3,514.21
Break-up for security details:
Rs in Lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
From Others
From related parties (Refer Note 29)
Unsecured, considered good - 1.80
From others
Secured, considered good 31.83 -
Unsecured, considered good 2,435.24 3,512.41
Trade receivables- credit impaired 159.54 159.54
Total 2,626.61 3,673.75
Less: trade receivables- credit impaired (159.54) (159.5)
Total 2,467.07 3,514.21
9. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Rs in Lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Balances with bank:
-On current accounts 1,853.86 1.00
Cash on hand - _

TOTAL 1,853.86 1.00
The Company has not pledged any part of its short-term deposits to fulfil collateral requirements.

[ gANGALOR
FRN: 0031355 ‘:t
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10. Share Capital

Rs in Lakhs
J1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Authorised share capital
50,000 Equity share of INR 10/- each 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
Issued and subscribed capital and paid up
10,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- Each Fully paid 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
|a.Reconcilliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of ther reporting year
Equity Shares 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
In bers INR in lakhs In numbers INR in lukhs
At the beginning of the year 10,000.00 1.00 - -
issued during the year - - 10,000.00 1.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000.00 1.00 10,000.00 1.00
11. Other Equity
Rs in Lakhs|
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
a) Capital Reserve (69953) (698G7)
Ir) General Reserve - .
) Share Premium - -
d) Retained Earnings (2183) (56)
) Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments 24,997 24,997
Balance at the end of the period (a+b+c+d+e+f) (47139) (44956)
Compound financial instrument
As per Ind AS 32, compound financial instruments need to be split into their debt and equity components from inception. The liability portion is
first computed and the balance is the equtiy portion. This has been computed for the 0.01% Compulsory convertible debentures
12 Borrowings Rs in Lakhs
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
From Others:
i) Secured
Debenture
0.01% Compulsory convertible debentures (unsecured) 18,558.94 18,558.94
Unsecured
Lease obligations 5,721.59 5,752.93
Loan from related party = .
Total 24,280.53 24.311.87
Less: Amount disclosed under "Other current financial liabilities"
- Current maturities of lease liabilities (Refer Note 14) (533.33) (437.43)
Total 23,747,_20 2_&?}7444
13. Trade payables
R in Lk
Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Trade Payables
- Outstanding dues to related parties - 2,698.80 1,096.84
- Outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - = 341.82 54.66
- Outstanding dues to others - - 4,591.15 5,049.06
Total ‘ = 7.631.77 | 6,200.56
BANGALORE
ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED FRN: 0031355 ) &

CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021

(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

14. Other Financinl Liabilities (at amortised cost)

CIN: U52202GA2019PLC0O14150
1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
Tel.: + 91 80 46992299 « www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India ¢ Tel.: + 91 832 2592180

Rs in Lﬂkllsl
Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of lease liabilities (Refer Note 12) 533.33 437.43
‘Trade deposits- dealers and others - - - -
- From others 84.40 74.76
Employee benefits payable - 221.48 1.10
Other Payable - - - 0.43
- From related parties (Refer Note 29) 35,000 35,000 . .
Balances with statutory authorities - - - -
Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost 35,000.00 35,000.00 839.20 513.72
Total other financial liabilities A5,000.00 35,000.00 839.20 513.72
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Ry in Lakhs
Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Non-current borrowing (Refer Note 12) 23,747.20 23,874.44 - -
Trade payable (Refer Note 13) 7,631.77 6,200.56
Other financial Liabilities (Refer Note 14) 35.000.00 35.000,00 839.20 513.72
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 58,747.20 58,874.44 8.470.97 6,714.28 |
15, Other Liabilities
Rs in Lakhs
Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Contract Liabilities- Advance received from customer 367.04 248.89
Statutory dues payable - - 50.30
Deferred Income 51.17 68.23 17.06 17.06
Total 51.17 68.23 434.40 265.94
Deferred Income
31-Mar-21 31 March 2020
Opening 85.28 -
Deferred during the year 102.34
Released to the statement of Profit and Loss -17.06 -17.06
68.22 85.28
16. Provisions (Current and Non-Current) s in Lakhs
Non Current Current
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Pravision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 28) 153.44 - 12.29 46.68
Leave liment (unfunded) 202.27 179,39 139.09 158.58
Total 445.71 179.39 151.38 205.27
Current 151.38 205.27
Non-Current 44571 179.39
Movement in provisions 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening - 96
Addition . .
Reversal/ Utilization - 96
Clesing - -
b i e
ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED

adventz

BANGALORE
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Zuari Farmhub Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

17. Tax Expense

17A. Deferred Tax Assct is not recognized as there is no virtual certainity regarding sufficeint taxable profits in the future.

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
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Zuari Farmhub Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

18. Revenue From Operations

Rs in Lakhs
Period Ended  Period Ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Revenue from Sales
Traded Product 30,621.84 161.06
Less: Discount on Traded Sales (1,333.31)
Other operating revenue
Sale of Scrap 0.89
Total 29,289.41 161.06
Rs in Lakhs
Period Ended Year Ended
19. Other income 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation(net) 102.81
Incentive under PSI 17.06 -
Miscellancous Income 34.9] -
Total 154.78 -
Rs in Lakhs]
Period Ended Year Ended
20, Purchases of stock in trade (net of purchase return) 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Purchases 25,128.16 -
Total 25,128.16 -
ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED

CIN: U52202GA2019PLC0O14150
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Zuari Farmhub Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Rs in Lakhs]|

Period Ended Year Ended

21, Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
work-in- progress

Inventories at the end of the year

Traded Goods 4.203.40 4.371.80
Total 4,203.40 4,371.80
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded Goods 4,366.27 4,502.96
Total 4,366.27 4,502.96
162.87 131.16
Rs in Lakhs
Period Fnded Year Ended
22, Employee Benelits Expense 31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,709.98 25.53
Contribution to provident and other funds 236.03 2.74
Gratuity expenses 33.27 0.27
Staff welfare expenses 109.35 0.76
Total 2,088.63 29.30]
Rs in Lakhs
Period Ended Year Ended
23. Finance Costs 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Interest Expense:
Bank Charges 32.99 -
Interest On Debenture 436 -
Interest On Lease Assets 44472 -
Interest On MSME DUE 0.81
Interest Charged on Overdue by MCFL 45.43 -
Total 528.30 -

Rs in Lakhs
Period Ended Year Ended

24. Depreciation and Amortization expense 31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 1,067.16 0.71

Amortisation of intangible assets 8.42 -
1,075.58 0.71

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st Mar 2021
(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Rs in Lakhy
Period Ended Year Ended
25, Other expenses 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Labour charges 50.57 =
Stores and spares consumed 0.36
Process expenses 0.30 -
Rent - 24.03
Rates and Taxes 31.69 247
Insurance 7.53 -
Power, fuel and Water 43.72 -
Repairs and maintenance -
Plant and machinery - -
Buildings 164.46 -
Others 10.56 0.38
Communication expenses 19.97 -
Travelling expenses 144.08 -
Legal and professional charges 56.19 -
Payment to auditor 4.10 0.45
Sales promotion expenses 22.37 -
CNF and Handling Charges 536.87 .
Research and development expenses 32.16 -
Sceurity Expenses 10.10 -
Outsourced Emp Salar 788.09 -
Inventories Written Off 164.13 -
Miscellaneous expenses 555.99 29.02
Total 2,643.24 56.35
Payment to auditor Period Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fees 245 0.45
Audit of interim financial statements 0.65 -
Tax Audit Fees 1.00
4,10 0.45
ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED

CIN: U52202GA2019PLC0O14150
1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
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Zuarl Farmhub Limlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

26. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / {loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company:

(Loss)/ profit after Taxation as per Statement of Profit and loss {INR in Lakhs) (2,182.56) (56.46)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share 10,000 10,000
Basic and diluted earnings /(loss) per equity share  in INR) (21,825.64) (564.57)
Face value per share (in INR) 10.00 10.00

27A. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006
The Group has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the

(INR In lakhs)
Particutars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpald to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
- principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 341.01 54.66
- Interest due on above 0.81 il
The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the Nil il
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during Mil Nil
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year Nit il
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are Nil il
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The information given above is to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company on the basis of information disclosed by the suppliers.

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150

1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
Tel.: + 9180 46992299 « www.adventz.com

Registered Office: Jai Kisaan Bhawan, Zuarinagar, Goa - 403 726, India * Tel.: + 91 832 2592180



FaymHUB adventz

Zuarl Fil I[,l Tartli.
Notes to #nanr FStatemonts for the year ended 31 March 2021
27. Gratulty and other post-employment benefit plans

{INR In lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020
- Gratuity Plan- Asset/ {Liability)* (16574} (46,68
Total {165.74) | (46.68

a) Gratulty

Gratuity is computed as 15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and Is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The Gratulty plan Is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service Is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at
retirement/terminatlon/resignation. The Gratuity plan for the Company Is a defined beneflt scheme where annual contrlbutions as demanded by the Insurer are deposited to a Gratulty Trust Fund established to provide
gratuity benefits. The Trust has taken an insurance pollcy, whereby these contributions are transferred to the Insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/llability in the books of account on the basls of
acturial valuation carried out by an independent actuary.

The following tables summarise the components of net beneflt expense recognlsed in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised In the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Net | benefits {recognized in L cost) for the vear ended
INR in lakhs
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 10.50 0.27
Total 10.50 0.27
ity {INR In lakhs}
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investment with insurer {Life Insurance Corporation of India) 159.17 173.95
Investment pattorn in plan assets:
Partlculars Gratuity
31 March 2021 31 naarch 2020
Funds managed by Insurance companles 100% 100%
Funds managed by trust
The principal assumptions used in determining benefit obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:
Particulars Gratulty
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate {in %) £,75% 5.85%
Salary Escalatlon (in %} 8% for first 2 years 8% for first 2 years
and 6.5% thereafter| and 6.5% thereafter
Mortality Rate {in %){Uatn Normal Retirement Apa) 100% 100%
Mortality Rate (In %}{Above Normal Retlrement Age) | NaA, NA
Withdrawal rate {per annum) 19-3% 10439
Aq Itivity lysls for significant assumption for the Company are as shown below:
Gratuity Plan
31 March 2021 31 Margh 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Assumptlons Discount rate Future salary [ncreases Altrition rate Mortality rate {In %)
10% decrease
d f 10 f
Sensltivity Level 1% Increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 50% Increase of 50% decrease o [pnereascl of mortality
attrition rate attritlon rate mortality rate —
! INR i lakhs INR in lakhs
Impact on defined heneflt obilgatinn 297.91 324.48 324,90
31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Assumptlons Discount rate Future salary Increases Attritlon rate Mortallty rate {In %)
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease| 1% Increase 1% decrease 50% Increase of| 50% decrease of 10% Increase of| 10% dacrease
attrition rate attritlon rate mortallty rate of mortality
rate
NR INR In lakhs| INR in lakhs INR In lakhs| iR in lakhs
205.45 23r.54 | 220.21 | 03 220,64 220.63

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes In key
assumptlons accurring at the end of the reporting period

Maturity Profile of Defined benefit obligation:

Expected cash flows over the rext {valued on undiscounted hiasis):

Gratuity
Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
INR In lakhs INR In I_a_l«_hgl
Within the next 12 months (next annual 1229 4791

reporting perlod)

Retween 2 1o & years

Between 6 and 10 vears
Bevond 10 vears

The average duration of the deflned beneflt plan obligation at the end of the reporting perlod is 6 years.

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED

CIN: U52202GA2019PLC0O14150
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Zuarl Farmhub Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

28, Related party transactlons
In accordance with the requirements of ind AS - 24 'Related Party Disclosures', names of the related parties, related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including
commitments where control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods are:

(i) Holding Company

(iil)

{Iv)

v

1) Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited

Key Management Personnel of the Company

1) Mr. Ranjit Singh Chugh - Director (Upto June 22,2020)

2) Mr. Nitin Manguesh Kantak - Director {(Upto June 22,2020)
3) Mr. Madan Mohan Pandy -Director

4) Mr. Sabaleel Nandy- Director

5) Mr. R.Y. Patil - Director (Upto June 22, 2020)

6) Mr. T M Muralidharan - Director { w.e.f June 18, 2020)

Parties having significant influence
1) Zuari Global Limited
2) indian Furniture Products Limited (IFPL)
3) Forte Furniture Products (India) Private Limited {joint ventur of IFPLtill 13 March 2019 and joint venture of ZGL w.e.f, 14th March 2019)
4) Simon India Limited
5) Zuari Management Services Limited
6) Zuari Infraworld India Limited
7) Zuari Finserv Limited
8) Zuari Investments Limited
9) Gobind Sugar Mills Limited (subsidiary of Zuari Investment Limited)
10)  Zuari indian Oil Tanking Private Limited {Joint Venture of Zuari Global Limited )
11)  Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilisers Limited (Subsidiary of Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited)
12)  Adventz Trading DMCC (Subsidiary of Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited)
13)  Zuari Maroc Phosphates Private Limited (Joint Venture of Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited)
14)  Paradeep Phosphates Limlted — (Subsidiary of Zuari Maroc Phosphates Private Limited)

Details of Post Employment Benefit Plans managed through separate trusts (para 9 (b} (v) of Ind AS 24)
1) Zuari Industries Limited Senior Staff Superannuation Fund
2) Zuari Industries Limited Non Management Employees Pension Fund
3) Zuari Industries Limited Gratuity Fund

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLCO14150
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FollowlIng transactions were carrled out with related partles in the ordinary course of business for the year ended :-

[INR in lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
S.No Transaction details Enterprises having Enterprises having
Holdl
Holding Signlificant Influence = Significant Influence

1 Exg Incurred on our behalf

- Zuari Agro Chemicals Limlted 1,641.91 - 106.38 .
2 Sales of Finished goods made on our behalf

- Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited - - 84.49 -
3 Issue of Equity Shares

- Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited = 3 1.00
4 Purchase of Asset & Llabllity (Net Considration- As slump Sales)

- Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited-(Refer Note -34} - - 78,556.00 -
5 | Purchase of Finished Goads

- Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited-{Refer Note -34} 4,885.97

- Paradeep Phosphates Limlted 3,365.52

- Mangalore Chemicals and Fertillzers Limited 3,674.69
6 Services Chraged

- Zuari Manag it Services Limited 513.96
7 Issue Compulsory convertible debenture [CCD)

- Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited- {Refer Note no 35} - - 43,556.00 -
8 Purchase of Interiors

- Indian Furniture Products Limited - 340.01
9 Interest accrued /paid on Loan/deposit/Inter-Corporate Deposit

- Zuari Agro Chamicals Limited-{Refer Note -34) 4.36
10 Rent pald

- 2uari Global Limited -

- Zuari Infraworld India Limited - 7.29

- Gobind Sugar Mills Limited = 1.30

Terms and conditions of transactlons with related parties

The transactions of sale and purchases with related partles are made on terms equivalent to those prevalling In arm's length transactlons. The outstanding
balances at the year end of trading activitles are generally unsecured. Interest is charged as per tarms of the contract with the related parties which is at arm's
length. The net outstanding balances are settled generally in cash.

There have been no guarantees provided or recelved for any related party recaivables or payables.

For the period ended 31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any Impairment of racalvables ralating to amounts owed by related partles.

ZUARI FARMHUB LIMITED
CIN: U52202GA2019PLC014150
1st Floor, Adventz Centre, No. 28, Union Street, Off. Cubbon Road, Bengaluru - 560 001. Karnataka, India.
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Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Balance Outstanding as on:

. {INR in lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
5.No Partlculars Enterprises having Enterprises having
Holding Holding Significant
Significant Influence
Influence
1 Trade payables/ Other Payable :
- Mangalore Chemicals and Fertllizers Limited- Transfer from Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd - on account of {Slump Sale}- as
per Business Transfer Agreement . 20945 ) 41042
- Paradeep Phosphates Limited-Transfer from Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd - on account of (Slump Sale)- as per Business
Transfer Agreement = 660:59 ’ 664'53
- Gobind Sugar Mllls Limited 130
- Zuari Management Servlces Limited 9.7
- Zuari e Limlited 0.21
= Zuarl Infraworld Indla Limited 2,59
- Zuar| Agro Chemlcals Limited 36,740.61 - 35,021.89 -
2 Trade recelvable/ Other receivable :
- Gobind Sugar Mills Limited - = - =
- Paradeep Phosphates Limited-Transfer from Zuari Agro Chemicals Ltd - on account of {Slump Sale)- as per Buslness . . 1.80
Transfer Agreament '
3 Capital advance :
- Zuarl Global Limited {Advanca for purchase of Land)-Transfer from Zuarl Agro Chemicals Ltd - on account of (Slump
. 3,209.13 . 3,209.13
Sale)- as per BusIness Transfer Agreement
- Indlan Furniture Products Limited-Transfer from Zuarl Agro Chemicals Ltd - on account of (Slump Sale)- as per
- 287.44 - 477.10
Business Transfer Agreement
4 Compulsory convertible debenture (CCD)
- Zuari Agro Chemicals Limlted 43,556.00 - 43,556.00
- Interest Payable on CCDto Zuari Agro Chemicals Limitad 4,36
5 Gratulty fund balance : - 159.17 - 173.95
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Zuarl Farmhub Limited
Notes to fInanclal statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021

29. Segment nformatlon

garding primary reporting as per Ind AS-108
The Company Is engaged In the buslness of manufacturing, trading and marketing of seeds, pesticides, chemlcal fertllizers and fertillzer prod which ding to the Is consldered as the only
business segment,

Accordingly, no separate segmental informatlon has been provided hereln.

Geographlcal segments
The Company operates in India and therefore caters to the needs of the domestic market, Therefore, there is only one geographical segment and hence, geographical segment Information Is not required 10 be
disclosed.

30, Financlal risk management oblectives and policles

The Company’s principal Ainanclal liabilltles, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The maln purpose of these financlal llabilitles Is to finance the Company’s operations.
The Company’s principal financial assets Include loans, trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company alse holds investments and enters into
derivative transactlons. The Company |s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquldity risk. The Company’s senlor the of these risks.

The Company's risk management s carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directors. The treasury department Identifles, evaluates and hedges financlal risks In close co-
operation with the Company’s operating units. The Board of directors pravides principles for overall rlsk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, Interest rate risk, credit
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial inslruments, and Investment of excess liquldity.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price rlsk, such as commodity risk. Financlal Instruments affected by market risk Include b gs, | and derlvative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the followIng sectlons relate to the positlon as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basls that the amount of net debt, the ratlo of fixed to floating Interest rates of the debt and derlvatives and the proportlon of financlal Instruments In forelgn
currencles are all constant,

The analysis exclude the impact of movements In market varlables on: the carrylng values of gratulty and other post p and other fl lal assets.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensltivity analysis:
-The sensltivity of the relevant profit or loss Item Is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This Is based on the financlal assets and financlal llabllities held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate rlsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates.

b) Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in forelgn exchange rates. The Company uses forelgn exchange forward contracts to manage its
transaction exposures. The foreign forward are not des|| d as cash flow hedges and are entered Into for periods conslstent with foreign currency exposure of the underlylng transactions,
generally from one to 7 months.

¢} Commodity price risk

{il) The Company deals In purchase of Imported Speclality fertilisers {WSF), which are Imported by the Company and sold in the domestlc market. The import prices of these goods are governed by International prices.
There is a price and malerial avallabllity rlsk, which may not be in line to meet the domestic market requirement. The rlsk is also with domestic manufacturers whose costing Is based on majorly Imported raw
materials and small value-add, However, a dynamlc alignment of procurement to sales and constant review of market conditions and competltors costing help In mitigating the impact.

(i) The Company also deals in purchase of imported raw materials (WSF), which are imporled by the Company and used in the manufacturing of Speciality Fertilizers, The import prices of these materials are
governed by international prices. There is a price and material avallabllity risk,

Credit risk
Credlt risk Is the rlsk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financlal instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company Is exposed to credit risk from Its operating activities
{primarily trade recei and from its fi | ivil Including deposits with banks and financial ( forelgn I and other flnanclal Instruments,

a) Financlal Instruments and cash deposlts

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial Institutions Is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the guidelines framed by the board of directors of the Company. Guidellnes
broadly covers the selection criterion and over all exposure which the Company can take with a particular financlal Institution or bank. Further, the guldellne also covers the limit of overall deposlt which the Company
can make with a partlcular bank or financla! Institution. The Company does not malntaln the significant amount of cash and deposits other than those required for its day to day operatlons.

Liquidity risk

The Company's objective is to malntaln optimum levels of liquidity to meet Its cash and collateral requirements at all times, The Company relles on a mix of borrowings and excess operating cash flows to meet its
needs for funds. The current committed Hnes of credit are sufficlent to meet Its short to medium/ long term expansion needs. The Company monltors rolling forecasts of Its liquldity requirements to ensure It has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs while malntalning sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowlIng facllities at ali times so lhat the Company does not breach borrowing limts or covenants {where
applicable) on any of its borrowling facilities.

The table below summarises the maturlty profile of the Group's financial llabllitles based on contractual undiscounted payments.
(INR in lakhs)

Less thun 1 Yoar. 1-3 Yeary 3-5 years 25 ygars Total
Year anded 31 March 2021
Borrgwings| Debenfures) . - - 18,558.94 18,558.94
Leace Qblipati 533.33 2,216.49 160811 136366 5,721.59
0 ancial liabilities 8840 35, 000.00 . - 35,084.40
Trade and other payabiles 7,631.77 - 7.631.77
Farelgn exch: nrward cavers - - - =

8,249.49 37,216.49 1,608.11 19,922.60 65i96.70
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Zuarl Farmhub Limited

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
31 The Board of Directors of the Company at Its meeting held on 05 February 2020 and , approved the Purchase and transfer of retall, speciallty nutrlents business {SPN} & allied, crop protection & care business
(CPC), seeds and blended businesses from Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited (ZACL) under a slump sale arrangement at a consldration of INR 78,556.00 fakhs based on valuation frem an Indepandent expert . All
Lhe assets and llabllities pertaining to the retall, speclality nutrients business (SPN) & allled, crop protection & care business (CPC), seeds and blended businesses of the ZACL,has been transfer to Company
vide, a Business Transfer Agreement {‘BTA’) executed on March 31, 2020 between the Company and ZACL,

The | of deration was by Issue of C Isory Convertlble Deb of INR 10000 each aggregating to INR 43556.00 lakhs and balance of INR 35000.00 lakhs payable on or before 30 June
2021,
32 During the previous year company has issued 4,35,560 Comp lly Convertlble Det at a face value of Rs. 10000/-each amounting to Rs.43,556.00 lakhs to Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited, the holding

compnay, towards part payment of purchase conslderatlon persuant to the Business Transfer agreement,

C Isory Convertlble deb es {CCD) were allotted on 31 March 2020 vide Detk subscription ag dated 31 March 2020, each CCD will be convertible Into such number of equity shares of
the company as |5 determined at the time, on the basis of val report of a reg| d valuer.The term of CCDs will be 9 {nine) years and 11(eleven) months from thelr date of Issuance. CCDs
carries a coupon rate of 0.01% {Zero polnt Zero One percent) per annum as simple Interest, which will accrue from the date of allotment and wlll become payable as and when cash flows are avallable, or
from such time as agreed In wrlting between the Company. The issue of CCD was approved In Extra-ordinary general meeting held on 28 March 2020

33 The Company has been granted Eligibility Certificate by the Directorate of Industrles, Government of Maharashtra vide letter No JDI/PUNE/PSI-2007/EC-12/2012/732 dated 19 July 2012. As per the Eligibility
Certificate, the Company |s entitled to:
a) Electricity Duty exemption for a perlod of 15 years from the date of commercial production.
b} 25% refund of annual VAT and CST liability {after set-off) on sale of manufactured goods.

In terms of the Indian Accounting Standard {nd AS 20) “Accounting for Government Grants®, the eligible incentive Is consldered as a capltal grant and has been set-up as deferred income, 'being recognised
in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the eliglble fixed assets.

Incentive receivable In respect of VAT and CST liabillty aggregating INR 68.22 lakhs as at 31 March 2021 has been set up as deferred Income and is belng recognised In the statement of profit and loss on
systematic basis over the life of the eliglble fixed assets. During the current year, INR 17.06 lakhs has been credlted to the statement of profit and loss.

Incentive in respect of electrlcity duty exemption is accounted for during the perlod as a reductlon from the electrlcity charges (i.e. the electricity charges r ] are considered net of electricity duty as
per payments made to the electricity board). Transfered from Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited (ZACL) on account of Business Transfer Agreement (BTA)

34 The Holding Company {Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited) has paid INR 3,209.13 lakhs In financlal year 2016-17 as advance to Zuarl Global Limited for purchase of two pieces of land In Solapur district. Durlng
the previous year this is transfered from Holding Company ( Zuarl Agro Chemicals Limited} as part of slump sale according to Business Transfer Agreement {BTA).The Company has taken possession of the
land and is in the process of getting it reglstered In name of the Company

35  The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID -19) pandemic globally and in Indla Is causing dIsturt and slowd: of Ic actlvity. The lockd d due to COVID-19 pandemic was
gradually lifted based on the Impact of outbreak. The agrlculture and fertllizer sector remaln relatively unaffected on demend side, the Company’s operation have not been affected significantly on account
of COVID-19 despite some issues relating to non-availabllity of labour and supply chain disruptlons. The pi Ive support and r led by the Central and respectlve State Governments helped
Company’s preduction, distributlon and sale of fertllizers and crop protection chemicals to remaln unaffected, The Company has been able to operate Its plants at normal levels by mobllizing critical work
force and adopting stringent soclal dI ing, salety and el Issued In this regard.

Further, the Company has also assessed the Impact of this pandemic on recoverabillty of carrylng value of financlal and non-financial assets as at the balance sheet date using varlous Internal and external
information up to the date of approval of these fnancial statements, The management has also performed sensitivity analysls on the assumptlons used and based on present estimates and belleves that the
carrying amount [s considered to be recoverable and accordingly no further adjustments Is required In the financlal statements.

However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process glven the uncertalnties assoclated with Its nature and duration. The Impact of Covid-19 may be different from that estimated as at the
date of approval of these financlal statements and the Company will continue to monitor any materlal changes to future economic conditions.
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